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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Bank of Los Banos, located on the northeast corner of Sixth and I Streets,
Los Banos, California, is a commercial structure which houses numerous local
businesses. This substantial two-story structure occupies a large corner lot
(approximately 100' x 100') in the main business core of Los Banos.

The overall plan of the building is basically a square; the front of the
building measures 100 feet as does the I Street side, although the rear of the
building has a 25' x 50' rectangular indentation on the northeast end.

The facade which runs along Sixth Street is composed of seven bays. Except

for replacement of wood doors with glass and the removal of some decorative
detailing, the exterior remains as constructed in 1924; it is reinforced
concrete with a finish of grani-lithic stone. The style of the Bank of Los
Banos Building is neo-classicism; wall surfaces rise to the architrave in a
rough imitation of engaged piers. A plain frieze once decorated by cattlehead
and garland swags was removed in the 1930's for safety reasons, but the scars
of the bucrane remain. A dentiled cornice finishes the entablature with a
recessed parapet topping the cornice; behind this is a flat roof. The facade
is divided into seven bays with each bay containing either an entrance door,
windows, or both. The original office functions can be distinguished by the
treatment of door and window openings on the first elevation. The bank, which
occupied the south end of the building, is distinguished from the northern
portion of the facade by an end window flanked by a large double door with a
console supported pediment with dentil course and leaf and tongue panel below.
A fret band surrounds the door opening. Another large window with a wall vault
serviced pedestrian banking functions. To the left of this vault is the second
bank entrance with an overhead canopy decorated with a honeysuckle frieze (the
material is probably cast iron). Other first floor offices which housed Miller
and Lux enterprises were entered through two equally spaced doors located on
the northern end of the facade; a large plate glass window separates these
entrances. All of these openings are distinguished from the bank openings by

a double panel of small paned overdoor windows.

Above the first floor elevations seven grani-lithic panels each containing a
roundel divide first and second floor window panels. Architectural trim on
the second floor windows is kept to a minimum with a simple Greek fret band
above each of the seven windows.

The northerly side wall which buts up against another building is
unarticulated. The southerly wall of the Bank of Los Banos Building is
identical to the facade except for window and door treatments. All first

story windows are patterned after the facade windows of the bank. A door is
located in the sixth bay of the side wall and is a recent (1977) alteration to
satisfy fire and safety code requirements. The rear of the building contains
plain windows and door exits. The first floor contains five windows with steel
window grills and the second story contains twenty windows without grills.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the Bank of Los Banos is both historical and architectural.
At the time of its construction in 1924, its size and neo-classical design
were a testimonial to the substantial commercial empire built by its owners
Henry Miller and Charles Lux. The neo-classical design popular in the U.S.
between 1900-1920 marks a period when major institutional and public buildings
were constructed in this style.

Henry Miller and Charles Lux, both immigrants from Germany, formed a
partnership in 1858. The Miller-Lux empire grew to include cattle holdings,
land holdings, and the San Joaquin and Kings River Canal and Irrigation
Company. Miller and Lux were instrumental in obtaining the Southern Pacific
Railroad line one block from the site of the Bank of Los Banos Building. The
town's development, which blossomed with the coming of the railroad, centered
around the Southern Pacific Railroad Depot. In 1923, Miller and Lux unveiled
plans to build a new bank to house all major enterprises of the area after a
1919 fire destroyed the Los Banos business area which had developed around the
railroad depot. The building was completed in 1925 with the first floor
housing the Miller-Lux enterprises, while professional and business offices'
were housed on the second floor.!

The exterior effect of the Bank of Los Banos is both blocky and massive, an
intentional choice for the building's function as a bank and one of the main
commerce buildings. Architect H.H. Winner described the building as Italian
and pre-Renaissance. The building is basically an example of neo~classicism,
a style based primarily on Greek architectural motifs and popular in the U.S.
between 1900-1920. This style received its main impetus from the Columbian
Exposition, 1893, Chicago. Neo-classicism is distinguished by symmetrically
arranged buildings finished with smooth stone or surface.

Parapets are common to the style while enriched moldings are rare except on the
entablature. The restrained use of decorative moldings as well as the overall
design, with large areas of smooth unornamented surface broken by recessions

in the grani-lithic surface suggest a transitional design moving away from the
more highly decorated classical style towards "modernism". No longer are the
walls composed of the pilasters or columns typical of neo-classicism.
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Site before present building was constructed. "New Opera House" (constructed
1903). The following institutions were located in this building:

Post Office

Bank of Los Banos

Miller & Lux Butcher Shop

Dr. W.J. Jamison, M.D. & Medical Library
Dr. J.J. King, D.D.S.

Theater - Town Hall

Present building - Bank of Los Banos (constructed March 12, 1923).

Bank of Italy - April 13, 1926
Bank of America - February 25, 1927
The 0l1d Bank Building 1965.
Offices located on the second floor were:
Dr. Virgil Menefee, D.D.S.
Mr. Moretti, M.D.
Dr. Hillyer, M.D.
Frank & Margaret Souza - Accountants
Roy Lower ~ Attorney at Law
Robert Falasco - Attorney at Law
Office for the City of Los Banos
Howard Stoddard - Engineering Firm
Dr. Jadarola, M.D.
Dr. C. Moretti, D.D.S.
Offices on lower level:
San Joaquin & Kings River Canal & Irrigation Co.
Miller and Lux Retail Store
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The Bank of Los Banos has changed little in physical appearance during the past
fifty-five years. The "cattleheads" grouped in pairs and separated by swags
of garland which ran the length of the cornice were removed in the 1930's. A
few changes were made by the second tenant, the Bank of Italy. These changes
were relatively minor and included the replacement of wood doors with glass
doors. Ground floor and second story offices are intact. The building's
interior doors, windows, and stairwells are original as is the brass hardware
on doors and banisters. Although the marble floor in the bank foyer is still
intact, it has been covered with a carpet. Hardwood floors are also carpeted.
The original coffered ceiling of the banking room has been covered and the
ceiling height lowered.

While changes have occurred to the interior of the building, the exterior
remains intact with only minor changes which have not damaged the integrity of
design. The building retains its impressive corner lot in the business core
of Los Banos and is a fine statement of the 1920's business world and
architectural transition from period revivals to "modernism",.
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The Bank of Los Banos appears as a transitional building...no longer distinctly
neo-classical but with only a hint of modernism. Impressive in both scale and
style, the building was a statement of the commercial wealth of the Miller-Lux
empire and operated as the major banking facility for the west side of Merced
and Los Banos. In 1926, the building was sold to the Bank of Italy and was
operated as a bank until 1965. With the construction of a new bank, the
tenants moved out and the bank has stood vacant until recently. During its
lifespan the building has changed little in physical appearance. Minor changes
were made in the first floor exterior doors, but overall the site and building
have retained their integrity.

Footnote:

1. Henry Miller amassed a fortune of over $50,000,000 and acquired one
million acres of land, Margorie Pierce, East of the Gabilans, p. 174.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

4.
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50 feet on the easterly lot line of lot 19, then westerly 75 feet to Sixth
Street, then southerly 100 feet to northeast corner of Sixth and I Streets and
point of beginning, as shown on the map entitled "Map of the Town of Los
Banos", Block 64, filed October 29, 1892 in the office of the County Recorder
of Merced County, in Volume 2 of Official Plats, page 21.

The 25' x 100' northern section of lot 20 is not included within the National
Register proposed boundaries since it is used as a parking lot; the boundary
has been drawn to include only the Bank of Los Banos Building.
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